
  

   

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Thames Valley Berkshire City Deal (Elevate Berkshire) Joint 
Committee 
Tuesday 25 September 2018, 10.30 am 
Stratus - 100 Longwater Avenue, Green Park, Reading, RG2 6GP 

To: THAMES VALLEY BERKSHIRE CITY DEAL (ELEVATE 
BERKSHIRE) JOINT COMMITTEE 

Councillors Brunel-Walker (Bracknell Forest Council), Fredrickson (West Berkshire Council), 
Munro (Wokingham Borough Council), Page (Reading Borough Council), Rankin (Royal 
Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead), Smith (Wokingham Borough Council) and Swindlehurst 
(Slough Borough Council) 

cc: Substitute Members of the Panel 

Councillors Collis (West Berkshire Council), Heydon (Bracknell Forest Council), Hussain 
(Slough Borough Council) and Taylor (Wokingham Borough Council) 

Co-optees: 

Katharine Horler, Thames Valley Berkshire LEP 
Tim Smith, Thames Valley Berkshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
 
 
 
 
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 

1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 

 
If you require further information, please contact: Derek Morgan 
Telephone: 01344 352044,   
Email: derek.morgan@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 14 September 2018 
 
 



 

 

Thames Valley Berkshire City Deal (Elevate Berkshire) Joint 
Committee 
Tuesday 25 September 2018, 10.30 am 
Stratus - 100 Longwater Avenue, Green Park, Reading, RG2 
6GP 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media at meetings which are 
held in public are permitted.  Those wishing to record proceedings at a meeting are 
however advised to contact the Democratic Services Officer named as the contact for 
further information on the front of this agenda as early as possible before the start of 
the meeting so that any special arrangements can be made. 

AGENDA 
 
 Page No 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute members. 
 

 

2. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN   

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 Members are asked to declare any personal or disclosable pecuniary 
interest in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they 
are withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests 
the Monitoring Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 

 

5. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent. 
 

 

6. MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING FROM THE LAST MEETING   

 To approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 22 May 2018 and 
receive updates on any issues not covered elsewhere on the agenda. 
 

5 - 10 



 

 

 

7. ELEVATE BERKSHIRE ESF PROJECT UPDATE   

 To provide the Joint Committee with an update on the Elevate 
Berkshire European Social Fund Programme.  
 
Key Updates:- 
 
• Item 1 – Update From Central Team on Key Projects 
• Item 2 – Partner Updates 
• Item 3 - Performance and Funding 
• Item 4 – Future Plans 
 

11 - 36 

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 The next meeting of the Joint Committee will be held at 10.30am on 
Tuesday 21 May 2019, following the meeting of the Thames Valley 
Berkshire LEP Forum that morning.. 
 
With the project due to end of 30 June 2019, this should also be the 
last meeting of the Joint Committee.  However, if any issues arise 
between now and 21 May which require formal input from members, an 
additional meeting will be arranged. 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



  

   

 

THAMES VALLEY BERKSHIRE CITY 
DEAL (ELEVATE BERKSHIRE) JOINT 
COMMITTEE 
22 MAY 2018 
10.15  - 11.20 AM 

 

 

 
Present: 
Councillor Stuart Munro, Wokingham Borough Council 
Councillor Sabia Hussain, Slough Borough Council 
Councillor Tony Page, Reading Borough Council 
Councillor James Swindlehurst, Slough Borough Council 
 
Co-opted Members: 
Tim Smith, Thames Valley Berkshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
 
Also Present: 
David Bolam, Elevate Central Team 
Mark Browne, West Berkshire Council 
Rhian Hayes, Wokingham Borough Council 
Emelye Janes, Elevate Central Team 
Rebekah Malcolm, Elevate Central Team 
Kashif Nawaz, Bracknell Forest Council 
Cathy Price, Slough Borough Council 
David Randall, Ways into Work 
Grant Thornton, Reading Borough Council 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillor Jo Lovelock, Reading Borough Council 
Councillor Marc Brunel-Walker, Bracknell Forest Council 
Councillor James Fredrickson, West Berkshire Council 
Councillor Jack Rankin, Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead 
Katharine Horler, Thames Valley Berkshire LEP 
 

 

7. Substitute Members  

The Committee noted that Councillor Tony Page had replaced Councillor Jo Lovelock 
as Reading’s representative. 
 
As Councillor Lovelock had been vice-chairman, the Chairman proposed that 
Councillor Page should be appointed as vice-chairman of the Joint Committee. 
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Page be appointed vice-chairman of the Joint Committee 
for the remainder of the municipal year. 

5

Agenda Item 6



 

 

8. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest. 

9. Urgent Items of Business  

There were no urgent items of business. 

10. Minutes and Matters Arising from the Last Meeting  

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 26 September 
2017 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

11. Elevate Berkshire ESF Update  

The Committee considered a report providing an update on the Thames Valley 
Berkshire Elevate programme. 
 
Emelye Janes highlighted a number of points arising from the report which covered 
the following topics: 
 
Item 1 – Update From Central Team on Key Projects 
Item 2 – Partner Updates 
Item 3 - Performance and Funding 
Item 4 - Project Change Request 
Item 5 – Future projects 
 
The Committee noted in particular that: 
 

 Kennedy Scott had won Slough Project 1- A contract for £170,000 to engage 
and support 390 eligible young people into employment, education or training 
or to gain basic skills, with a particular focus on supporting those from an 
ethnic minority (BME) background. 

 

 Slough Project 2- A contract for £40,000 to engage and support 40 lone 
parents into education, employment or training was being re-advertised 
following an unsuccessful first procurement exercise, but it was also noted 
that the high cost of living in Berkshire and the DWP’s definition of lone 
parents made meeting the targets more challenging. 

 

 During October- December 2017, Elevate Berkshire and West Berkshire had 
commissioned Projects with Purpose to undertake some research into how 
best to attract and engage with young people with a view to moving them into 
employment, education or training and test the theory of setting up an online 
peer led programme but the conclusion had been that a digital service in 
isolation would not work as the young people were very vocal about their 
continuing need for in-person services, with huge value put on being able to 
‘trust’ the person providing that service.  

 

 Projects with Purpose had proposed a potential pilot model but there were 
concerns around funding a pilot with ESF money which would not directly 
deliver against the programme targets.  

 

6



 

 

 The partnership had agreed that lessons could be learned from the Projects 
with Purpose report with regard to digital marketing and better outreach and 
engagement with participants using digital channels. 

 

 Traffic to the Elevate Me website remained low in some areas and, as the 
Projects with Purpose report had pointed out, more could be done across the 
programme to promote Elevate and engage with young people in more 
meaningful ways online.  
 

 Focus groups had been held with young people to identify what was good 
about Elevate, what could be different, or what else they would like to see the 
programme doing. 

 

 A digital marketing apprentice was to be employed to build the online 
presence of Elevate Berkshire, improving the content of the ElevateMe local 
websites and working with partners to increase outreach via social media. 

 

 The central team was to source some digital marketing training for Elevate 
staff so all partners could become more proactive in this area.  

 
A summary of progress from each of the following partners was also provided: 
 
Bracknell Forest 
Prince’s Trust 
Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead 
Adviza- Reading 
Ways Into Work  
West Berkshire 
Wokingham 
 
An oral update was provided in relation to Slough.  The main points made were that: 
 
Bracknell Forest: 
 
• The Council was embedding Elevate in Children’s Services to ensure it had a 

life beyond this project. 
 
• The Council was aiming to build on opportunities with the Lexicon and other 

businesses.   
 
• Elevate was featuring in the Council’s Transformation Programme to 

demonstrate to partners how important it was to work with Elevate. 
 
• A project with Adviza had ended in December 2017 but another project was 

now moving forward. 
 
• Partners’ capacity had been an issue so more was being done digitally. 
 
Princes Trust 
 
• Courses had been successful but not pan-Berkshire and therefore needed to 

be made available pan-Berkshire. 
 

7



 

 

Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead: 
 
• Reaching the young people had been the main challenge. 
 
Ways into Work 
 
• In the last quarter, there had been engagement with 10 new employers. 
 
West Berkshire 
 
• It had been found to be more effective to deal with individuals one by one 

rather than pursuing groups.   
 
• Many young people just needed re-motivating. 
 
• The Council was working with new providers as the existing providers had 

largely let it down. 
 
• There was a need to be smarter in working with partners. 
 
• An equine provider had proved particularly useful although their location was 

not ideal. 
 
• There was a need to be creative to get some young people motivated. 
 
• The Council was struggling to attract 20-24 year olds but was engaging better 

with 16-19 year olds. 
 
Wokingham 
 
• The Council regarded outreach as important.   
 
• It was going to be hard to achieve the numbers required. 
 
• Regeneration had had an impact on Wokingham’s ability to offer 

opportunities. 
 
• The Council was seeking to increase the number of partners to work with 

young people. 
 
• The Council had set up an apprenticeship support group. 
 
• The Council was itself taking on NEETs.. 
 
• Mental health was a key issue. 
 
• Elevate was now treated as business as usual. 
 
• Performance was good but GDPR was now hindering the sharing of some 

data. 
 
• The Council was checking its outcomes. 
 
Slough 
 
• The Council was excited about the two new projects. 

8



 

 

 
• There was a desire for the lone parents project to create a legacy that would 

last beyond the contract period. 
 
• There was a desire to equip children's centres to provide the necessary 

support. 
 
• NEETs with complex needs were a key issue. 
 
• The Council was confident that it was reaching out effectively to young people 

as under 1% were believed to be “unknowns”. 
 
With regard to performance, the Committee noted that 
 

 The partnership had engaged 1411 young people since November 2015, of 
these 302 had been supported into employment, education or training. 

 The partnership had already delivered against the disability target for the 
programme, supporting 421 participants who had declared a disability against 
a target of 280. 

 The partnership had supported 31 young people to gain basics skills; this was 
against a 3 year target of 24 with West Berkshire having done particularly 
well.. 

 Good progress was being made against the ethnic minority target, as delivery 
of Slough Project 1 started, this would make a considerable contribution to 
this target being met. 

 More work was needed to ensure that evidence was collected for results 
where they had been achieved. 

 There was still some work to do by all partners to ensure that the Lone 
Parents target was met; assuming a provider was found for Slough Project 2, 
this would make a considerable contribution to this target. 

 Continued effort was being made to engage with eligible young people, 
particularly via outreach. 
 

The Committee was advised that in September 2018, the programme had submitted 
a Project Change Request to the DWP for an extension of the project end date, from 
October 2018 to June 2019 to enable the realisation of project outputs and results 
over a longer period, thereby mitigating the risk of not meeting collective programme 
targets.  However, after some delay, in March, it had been advised that there had 
been a policy change nationally and that contract changes, in terms of extensions, 
would no longer be agreed.  However, further discussions had taken place about 
revising the ethnic minorities and disabilities targets that appeared to have led to an 
extension being permitted, which was supported by all partners, although formal 
written confirmation had yet to be received.  A revised outputs and result profile had 
also been submitted with the change request.  The partnership’s  performance 
against the revised outputs and results profile submitted with the change request 
increased overall performance for engagement to around 76% vs 54% (current profile 
until Oct ‘18), should this profile be accepted, it would make the programme target 
much more achievable and move performance in line with a more achievable profile. 
This would reduce the risk of claw back and for some partners mean that the 
underperformance methodology would not be applied to future claim payments.   
 
The Committee congratulated Emelye on the work she had done to bring about the 
extension.  To support her, the Committee agreed that it fully supported the change 
request and approach proposed.  Tim Smith indicated that he would be in touch with 
the DWP later and would advise them accordingly. 

9



 

 

  
The Committee was also advised that the central team was looking to identify new 
funding that would bring longevity to the Elevate Berkshire 16 to 24 project, to 
continue the system change and support new models and ways of working it had 
introduced.  The DWP appeared to be keen for ‘Berkshire’ to continue the project 
beyond June 2019 and had spoken positively of the way in which Elevate Berkshire 
had striven to knit the skills and employment system together across Berkshire.  
 
In addition to the employment of a digital marketing apprentice for 15 months, the 
funding for which would be supplemented by Bracknell Forest who would also be 
employing them part time, it was proposed to initiate further work with young people 
with mental health issues who were currently unemployable and also those from 
minority ethnic groups.  It was noted that to support those with mental health issues, 
it may be possible to work with the CCGs as they were doing similar work, or Health 
and Wellbeing Boards, but it was likely to be challenging.  The Committee agreed 
that it would be important to avoid duplication.  It was also suggested that members 
may wish to talk to their Public Health teams about whether they may wish to support 
these initiatives.  There were two ways that this work could be approached, either by 
recruiting two outreach workers to work with mental health and minority ethnic 
groups, or a provider could be commissioned.  They would be based in Reading and 
would have very specific targets. 
 
The need to avoid duplication was reiterated and add value to whatever partner 
initiatives were already underway to help people with mental health issues into work.  
The Committee was keen for this to be a legacy beyond the project. 
 
Subject to confirmation of the project extension, Emelye was confident that the work 
should be able to move forward in the next week or so.  The Committee would be 
kept informed by email.   
 
Having discussed the report the Joint Committee: 
 
RESOLVED  
 
1 To note the success of the collective Elevate Berkshire programme;  
 
2 To endorse the actions, proposals and agreements within the briefing paper; 

to ensure the programme continued to be delivered in-line with ESF 
processes. 

 
3 To support the change request and revised targets proposed. 
 
: 
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

10



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TO: 

 

ELEVATE BERKSHIRE JOINT COMMITTEE 

 

DATE: 25th September 2018 AGENDA ITEM:  

 

TITLE:  

Elevate Berkshire Update 

 

 

LEAD COUNCILLOR: 

 

 

CLLR MUNRO (WBC) 

 

  

 

WARDS:                  BOROUGHWIDE 

 

  

 

LEAD OFFICER: 

 

Joanna Flaxman 

 

 

TEL: 

 

07870155290 

JOB TITLE: Project Manager – 
Elevate Berkshire 

 

E-MAIL: Joanna.flaxman@reading.gov.uk 

 

 

 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

1.1 This report provides Elevate Berkshire Joint Committee with a progress update on the 
pan-Berkshire ‘Elevate’ programme, specifically focusing on:- 

 

 Item 1 – Update From Central Team on Key Projects 

 Item 2 – Partner Updates 

 Item 3 - Performance and Funding 

 Item 4 – Future Plans 

 

1.2  Elevate Berkshire is an employability and skills programme funded by the European 

Social Fund (ESF). The Elevate Berkshire partnership is made up of a number of key 

stakeholders including the 6 Berkshire local authorities, The Prince’s Trust, Ways into 

Work and Adviza. The partnership also has a number of delivery partners – delivering 

activity on behalf of the key stakeholders. 

 

1.3  The programme is led by a central Elevate Berkshire team based at Reading Borough 

Council, the accountable body, and brings together a range of other partners, as above, 

to support young people aged 16-24 in Berkshire who are hard-to-reach or have 

barriers to employment 

 

 

11

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 

  

2.0 RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 

2.1 That Joint Committee note the success of the collective Elevate Berkshire 
programme and endorse the actions, proposals and agreements within the 
briefing paper; to ensure the programme continues to be delivered in-line with 
ESF processes. 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 1 – UPDATE FROM CENTRAL TEAM ON KEY PROJECTS 

 

3.0 Slough delivery 

 

3.1 Previously the Elevate Berkshire programme was not being directly delivered in the 
Slough local authority area with the exception of the provision from the Prince’s Trust 
and Ways into Work. However, as there are a significant number of eligible participants 
who could benefit from the Elevate Berkshire ESF programme, agreement was made by 
the Thames Valley Berkshire Joint Committee to procure providers to deliver two 
projects in Slough.  

 

3.2  In November 2017 a procurement exercise was undertaken by Reading Borough 
Council, as the accountable body, for the two projects: 

 

 Slough Project 1- A contract for £170,000 to engage and support 390 eligible 
young people into employment, education or training or to gain basic skills. With 
a particular focus of supporting those from an ethnic minority (B&ME) 
background. 

 Slough Project 2- A contract for £40,000 to engage and support 40 lone 
parents into education, employment or training. 

 

3.3  Slough Project 1 was awarded to Kennedy Scott, who have considerable experience in 
delivering employment support to individuals with barriers to employment. The project 
went live in May and Kennedy Scott have reported 89 outcomes and 15 results.18 of 
their participants attended the Slough Jobs Fair in June to meet potential employers. 
This event led to four participants gaining interviews.  Staff from Kennedy Scott have 
attended service provider meetings to introduce the project which has led to an increase 
in referrals and also resulted in a better understanding about the delivery with local 
partners. 

 

3.7  Despite considerable interest in Project 2, only one provider bid for the project. The 
contract was offered to this provider who subsequently turned it down. As a result, the 
central team sought feedback from those who expressed an interest. The project was 
re-advertised at the beginning of May.  Kennedy Scott were then awarded this contract 
also and the delivery went live in September. 

 

4.0   Digital Marketing  

 

4.1 Each partner has their own localised website in the form of ElevateMe and some 
partners use social media sites such as Facebook and Twitter for promoting the service 
and support available. However, Elevate online presence is not particularly strong. 

 

12



 

 

 

  

4.2  Traffic to the Elevate Me website remains low in some areas and out more can be done 
across the programme to promote Elevate and engage with young people in more 
meaningful ways online.  

 

4.3  The Officer Steering group previously agreed to employ a digital marketing apprentice 
however given the time constraints of the project it would not be possible for someone 
to complete an apprenticeship in the period so an advertisement has been placed for a 
Digital Marketing Assistant, part funded by Elevate Berkshire and part by Bracknell 
Forest Council.  Their role for Elevate Berkshire will be to build the online presence and 
improve the content of the ElevateMe local websites and work with partners to increase 
outreach via social media.  The advertisement closed on 23rd September with interviews 
taking place on 5th October. 

 

4.4 Once the staff member is in place, the central team will look to source some digital 
marketing training for Elevate staff so all partners could become more proactive in this 
area.  

 

Appendix A outlines the most recent analytics for the Elevate Me Websites. 

 

5.0  Employment is Everyone’s Business Project 

 

5.1  Employment is Everyone’s Business - Stage 2’ commenced delivery in March 2017.  
The aim of the project is to support Elevate Berkshire and the 6 LA areas to improve life 
chances and employment outcomes for young people with Special Educational Needs 
SEND.  The project includes 20 days of targeted support based on the outcome of 
phase 1 and the action plans and outcomes desired across Berkshire. 

 

Appendix B provides an update on the progress of this project. 

 

6.0 Dynamic Purchasing System 

 

6.1 Within the allocation of ESF funding retained by the central team there remained around 
£60,000 to be allocated to a project or to commission a provider. An initial options paper 
was tabled at the April 2018 officer Steering Group for discussion, feedback from this 
options paper was strongly in favour of a project to intensively support participants to 
intensively support participants with a mental health problem. 

 

6.2 Progress is being made towards the delivery of this system with Central Elevate team 
members in liaison with the Procurement and Legal officers of Reading Borough Council 
to ensure relevant standing orders and processes are adhered to.  Elevate partners 
have been asked to nominate organisations they are aware of who work with the client 
group and would bring provision to Berkshire young people in need additional support in 
mental health and other areas. 

 

 

ITEM 2 - PARTNER UPDATES 

 

7.0  Bracknell Forest 
 

7.1 Considerable work has been carried out to contact non-compliant client records. This 
has been carried out as part of on-going tracking and all attempts are being recorded.  
Staff are using telephone calls, email messages, text messages and will now be 
carrying out some door knocking, to gain the relevant information. Ensuring full 
programme compliance remains an on-going priority.  

13



 

 

 

  

 

7.2 Nine of the current cohort have had one or more significant interventions.  However 18 
have had other contacts with the average number of other contacts being six.  This 
would indicate the importance of other contacts as a route to encouraging engagement.  
Contacts in general remained high particularly for those who have not yet engaged – 17 
is the maximum number any one client has had, which shows ongoing partnership 
working to try to engage with the referees.  All relevant partners and providers have 
been engaged to generate an increase in the number of referrals of young people who 
would benefit from Elevate support.  

  

7.3 From the total of 19 clients contacted over this quarter, 13 have engaged with the 
support offered. 

 

7.4 Referral sources can be broken down into 32% from the local authority, 21% from 
Adviza, 21% self referral and the remainder from YOS, DWP, a Housing support 
provider and Social Care. 

 

7.5 At risk of disengaging is the most common risk factor recorded.  Low school attendance, 
PRU and mental health are also commonly occurring: 

 

7.6 A seasonal trend was noted in the lower number of young people supported.  

 
7.7 Being co-located with the local JCP has enabled better networking and an awareness of 

the support available to relevant young people. Collaboration with Job Coaches has 
enabled them to see young people, give advice on Universal Credit and increase 
awareness of local employment opportunities.  A number of young people have been 
supported to look at options such as apprenticeships, Princes Trust Courses, Adviza 
Intensive Project – support otherwise that they would not have received.  

 
7.8 Dedicated presence at Bracknell and Wokingham college has meant that young people 

are supported as they finish their course to support them to identify options. They have 
been supported to look for employment, apprenticeships and further courses.  A young 
person was supported to apply; attend the interview and enrol on her chosen course 
which she was successful in securing.  Another young person was helped to research 
about local car garages and then supported to hand out CVs for employment 
opportunities which led to an interview and subsequent offer for a job.  

 
7.9 Regular attendance at a local supported living establishment has led to improved 

engagement with short and long term NEET young people. This has enabled a number 
of young people to seek support for job searches where three have gone on for 
interviews and are now in employment.  

 
7.10 Bracknell Forest continue to offer CSCS Card Health & Safety assessment practice at 

the Hub and this offer has been taken up by 34 young people who are seeking a career 
in the construction industry. The students continue to achieve their qualification 
following intensive support via the Elevate programme.  For one young person, gaining 
the CSCS card and being able to get a job as a general labourer on a construction site 
meant a complete turnaround in his life; from being NEET and exploited into criminal 
activity, to being in full-time permanent paid employment.     

 

 

7.11 Partnership working continues to be very successful, with regular meetings being held 
with managers and delivery staff, to ensure a structured client focussed delivery to all 
clients.  

 

14



 

 

 

  

7.12 Elevate Steering Group meetings are being used as the venue for discussions as to 
how best we can open up these opportunities to local people. Various meetings have 
been held to maximise opportunities for all of our young people.  

 

7.13 The Supported Employment programme with Learning to Work has progressed well and 
17 young people were referred and supported to this programme.  

    

7.14 The project with Adviza, targeting the harder to reach NEETS involves more young 
people in the programme, even if they are seen remotely from the Hub is an intensive 
support programme and the target was 75 young people in the next year. This target 
was achieved in month 11 of the project. Most interventions take place outside of the 
Hub, in venues that the young people are more comfortable with. It can now be seen 
that, with early meetings being held remotely, as their confidence increases, they are 
happy to visit their PA at the Hub, enabling them to access wider support.  

 

8.0  Prince’s Trust 

8.1 210 fully compliant young people have been claimed to date, against a profile of 278. 82 
results have been claimed against the profiled 155. In the period, 22 additional young 
people were engaged who we could not claim for due to eligibility issues.   Over the 
duration of the project, Princes Trust have worked with 305 young people in Berkshire, 
which makes at least 89 young people supported but not claimed due to eligibility 
issues. 

 

8.2 The following courses were delivered in the period, in line with the project plan: 

 Get into Security – Reading 

 Get Started with Football – Reading 

 Get Started with Health and Fitness – Reading 

 Get Started with Digital Media - Reading 

 

8.3 Despite considerable efforts to reach out to NEETS in the area, the Princes Trust 
continue to face substantial challenges in the recruitment of eligible participants to the 
project. They regularly review our offer of programmes, the selection of themes and the 
location of the course to maximise recruitment, but they continue to see low uptake and 
courses continue to run under capacity. They find that young people that do engage, 
particularly through referrals, are mainly high needs, and too far from being ready for 
employment or education or training, for their intervention to be effective.  

 

8.4 Following success in other localities they are piloting a three day Ready to Work course 
for the Hospitality sector, which will focus on participants closer to the job market, who 
require a short but targeted intervention to progress into employment. The 3 days will 
focus on employability skills, interview practice and CV writing, and will match 
participants with employers who are currently recruiting in the sector. If successful in 
Reading, they will look at replicating the Ready to Work days elsewhere in the county, 
as a way to reach young people that are not willing to travel, which remains a challenge. 

 

8.5 Strong links with employers who work with us to run the courses, has proven to be 
essential to securing job opportunities for the young people. Courses like Get Into Retail 
with M&S, Security with Triforce and Get Started with Football with Reading FC prove 
particularly successful in securing progressions for the participants.    

 

9.0  RBWM 

15



 

 

 

  

9.1 Six young people were added to the data schema in the last quarter and the 
employment of one young person was added.  The project continues to actively recruit 
young people, inform them of ESF support, and support them to achieve high quality 
outcomes. 

 

9.2 A weekly drop-in takes place for participants to gain employability and job coaching 
support from supported employment advisors. 

 

9.3 Grow Our Own provides a drop-in session to enable young people to get help with 
applying and searching for employment and education This is well attended and allows 
new young people to come along and sign up without an appointment 

 

9.4 Referrals are made to Ways into Work of clients with disabilities or other barriers to work 

 

10.0  Adviza - Reading 

10.1 In the most recent quarter Adviza have signed up 35 compliant starts against a profile 
target of 92.  Their cumulative profile is 301 starts against a profile of 400.   

 

10.2 They are working with non compliant (due to ID) participants and aiming to support them 
with applying for ID. In the last quarter, they have managed to convert six non-compliant 
signup forms to compliant.  

 

10.3 Of the 35 compliant signups, ten of the participants have declared themselves as 
jobless households, which has increased since the last quarter.  Adviza ensure that the 
families are identified to support services such as the National Careers Service. The 
number of forms marked as having a disability have decreased.  63% of the signups 
have identified themselves as White British with the remainder identifying themselves 
from an ethnic minority. 

 

10.4 Adviza have delivered a session to targeted students on one year courses at Reading 
College on the support they can receive via the Elevate Hub. 

 

10.5  Students in Year 11, 12 & 13 at risk of becoming NEET have been targeted, by 
delivering a session on the support they can receive via the Elevate Hub. 

 

10.6 Workers embed themselves within Reading Borough Council to support engagement 
with the vulnerable Groups. 

 

10.7 Adviza are working with the Princes Trust “Team” Programme to offer them a CV writing 
and job searching session at the Elevate Hub for all of their learners during the 
Programme. 

 

10.8 Providing a dedicated worker to Reading College who is having all young people “at 
Risk of dropping out of College” highlighted to them to engage with and offer the support 
of Elevate. 
 

10.9 The weekly Job Club has not been running as the need wasn’t there from the required 
number of young people.  Resource is available at the hub to deliver this on an ad hoc 
basis or a more regular basis if young people are interested. 

 

10.10 Job Centre Plus is still proving difficult to engage.  Once JCP removed the worker from 
the Elevate hub it has been hard to communicate or set up a process for the JCP to 
identify 18 – 24 year olds. 

16



 

 

 

  

 

10.11 School and college presentations have been successful and are a good way to identify 
young people at risk of becoming NEET in the summer. 

 

11.0  Ways Into Work  

11.1 Of the 62 people, WiW are working with:- 

 40 have a completed vocational profile 

 All but 2 have action or development plans 

 20 have had work trials 

 17 have obtained work results and are receiving in work support. A further 2 have roles 
which can’t be included as results. 

 68% are male, 32% are female. 

 76% are White British, 24% are from ethnic minorities. 

 45% have autism spectrum conditions, 27% have learning disabilities, the remaining 
28% are broken down into physical, sensory or mental health conditions or other 
disabilities / barriers 

 

11.2 Ways into Work is now established across Berkshire and are successfully receiving 
referrals from partners across the region. Ways into Work staff are co-located within 
Reading and Maidenhead Hubs and working across the region from these bases. They 
are now actively supporting 62 individuals across Berkshire. 18 people from Slough, 22 
people from Reading, 1 person RBWM, 16 West Berkshire, 3 from Bracknell.  There is a 
waiting list of 12 (4 Reading, 5 Slough, 3 West Berkshire) and these will be allocated to 
an Employment Coach as soon as capacity allows. They are currently in the final stages 
of recruiting a replacement employment coach in Reading/West Berkshire to replace an 
employee who was promoted.  Ways into Work have engaged with in excess of 10 new 
employers in the quarter and attended several employer engagement events.  As a 
result they have begun working with two new employers and have negotiated Work 
Experience, Traineeship and Apprenticeship placements.  
 

12.0  West Berkshire 

12.1 All providers continue to be encouraged to be flexible in their approach and identify the 
true barriers to employment. More internal services are being encouraged to put young 
people forward, but this takes some time to embed with operational staff. A marketing 
exercise is planned for the autumn which should help.   West Berkshire are seeing an 
increasing number of young people emerging as NEET having previously been engaged 
with Elevate several years ago. This highlights their ongoing long term support need 
and the importance of knowing when to close a client’s record. 

 

12.1 An increase in participants via a refreshed Adviza approach has increased the number 
of participants in West Berkshire and they have been able to put on the data schema 
with a significant number anticipated for the next claim. 

17



 

 

 

  

 

13.0  Wokingham 

13.1 Wokingham have 240 participants in total and have over-achieved on their target 
relating to ethnic minorities, with 26 individuals signed up (108% of the target) and 
disabled participants with 62 people signed up. 

 

13.2 There are still 20 non-compliant files waiting to be turned round. Optalis have been 
working on targeting these by contacting them personally to encourage them to continue 
to using the service effectively.  

 

13.3 Wokingham are on track with their target to reach single parents, but have yet to 
achieve it..  They have been targeting local Children’s Centres with flyers and 
information on the service offer to raise awareness.  

 

13.4 They have fallen behind on their target relating to participants with no basic skills, and 
are currently at 72%. To target this they are gathering information about basic skills 
courses, and will promote these to participants.  

 

13.5 Following discussions with schools, all 12 Wokingham schools have sent in the 
Intended Destinations for their Year 11 pupils, indicating their plans for after Year 11.   
Two schools have submitted details of the offers they have made (dependent on GCSE 
grades obtained) for September 2018.   Eight schools have provided details of their 
potential NEET students, who may require ongoing support over the summer and they 
have set up Data Sharing Agreements with six schools and a college. 

 

13.6 The NEET figures have reduced over the quarter, from 1.5% in April (48 young people), 
to 1.3% in May (43 young people), to 1.2% (39 young people).  The Not Known figures 
also continue to steadily reduce with 2.2% Not Knowns in April (72 young people), 2.1% 
in May (70 young people) and 2% in June (67 young people). 

 

13.7 The tracking that has been taking place with the SEND (special educational needs and 
disability) young people has had a very positive impact on the Not Known figures for this 
cohort, with the Unknown figure reducing from 26.7% in April, to 17.6% in June.  
Although the NEET figure has risen during this period, this is not a cause for concern as 
it reflects the fact that the young people who were in unknown destinations have been 
contacted and are able to support them to move from NEET into EET, inviting them to 
attend the Elevate Hub to receive support, sharing information about the weekly job 
shop, and using social media as a marketing tool, Home visits and late night tracking 
evenings during the quarter have both significantly helped with the NEET and Not 
Known results. 

 

13.8 At the beginning of the quarter they undertook an analysis of the NEET group who had 
not been signed up to Elevate and prioritised those from BME groups for immediate 
contact.   

 

14.0 Slough 

14.1 Slough delivery is reported in 3.6 and 3.7 of this report. 
 
15.0 Case Studies 
 
15.1 Case studies from Elevate partners are shown in Appendix C. 
 
 

18



 

 

 

  

 

ITEM 3 – PERFORMANCE AND FUNDING 

 

16.0  PERFORMANCE 

 

16.1  The programme has a set of collective outputs (3380) and collective result (43% result 
on overarching outcome target). Each partner has been assigned an output and result 
target – that collectively meet the pan Berkshire programme targets.   

 

The most recent performance table is set out in Appendix D 

 

17.1  Highlights 

 

 The partnership have engaged 1624 young people since November 2015, of these 358 
have been supported into employment education or training. 

 The partnership has already delivered against the disability target for the programme, 
supporting 488 participants who have declared a disability against a target of 280. 

 The partnership has supported 31 young people to gain basics skills; this is against a 3 
year target of 24. 

 Good progress being made against the ethnic minority target, as delivery of Slough 
project 1 has made a positive start this will make a considerable contribution to this 
target being met. 

 

17.2  Priority areas: 

 Ongoing work to ensure that evidence is collected for results where they have been 
achieved. 

 There is still some work to do by all partners to ensure that the lone parents target is 
met, the delivery which has recently begun in Slough by Kennedy Scott will make a 
considerable contribution to this target. 

 Continued effort to engage with eligible young people, particularly via outreach. 
 

17.3 In January 2017, the programme was underperforming against the indicative profile of 
outputs and results. As ESF money can be withheld or clawed-back for 
underperformance, it was agreed that local Elevate projects could not continue to draw 
down ESF funding when the necessary outputs and results weren’t being achieved. It 
was also agreed that if performance did not improve then funding released back to 
partners, by the central team, would need to be looked at in relation to performance 
(i.e., outputs and results delivered, not just resource spent); as set out in section 13.10 
of the pan Berkshire Partnership Agreement  

 

 

18.0 FUNDING- CLAIMS AND PAYMENTS 

 

18.1  Since the November 2017, the central team have been using the DWP systems E-
claims for all activity in relation to claims- this includes claim submission, evidence 
checking and claim payments from DWP. 

 

18.2 To date, DWP have paid 6 claims (covering the period Nov 15 to Jun 17). The 
programme is still awaiting payment for claim 7 (£372,108.01), claim 8 (£296,111.27), 
claim 9 (£232,265.28) and claim 10 (£261,476.04).  The central team were advised that 
claim 7 was paid at the end of August but were still awaiting confirmation that this has 
been received at the time of submission of this report. 

 

19



 

 

 

  

18.3 Appendix E sets out how much partners have claimed, total values of payments 
received and have available to claim going forward. 

 

18.4 As discussed at previous Joint Committees, in order to mitigate the risk of claw-back 
which may result from underperformance against the outputs and results targets, 
partner’s performance has been taken into consideration in relation to payments for 
since Claim 4. 

 

18.5 The central team looks at performance and resource spent, when releasing ESF money 
drawn down via DWP.  Claim payments have been based on the performance of the 
most recent claim submitted – to acknowledge there is a lag with payments and 
partners will have continued to have delivered outputs and results since the claim was 
submitted. 

 

18.6 As agreed, the money retained will be kept centrally, until a time when partners are 
delivering their outputs and results in line with their current approved profile. 

 

ITEM 4 – FUTURE PLANS 

 

19.1 In September 2018, the programme submitted a Project Change Request (PCR) to 
DWP. This PCR was for an extension of the project end date, from October 2018 to 
June 2019 to enable the realisation of project outputs and results over a longer period- 
mitigating the risk of not meeting collective programme targets.  This PCR has now 
been accepted and partners are working to the revised profiles. 

 

19.2  The central team look for opportunities for funding that will bring longevity to the Elevate 
Berkshire 16 to 24 project – to continue the system change and support new models 
and ways of working it has introduced.  DWP are keen for ‘Berkshire’ to continue the 
project beyond June 2019 and has spoken positively of the way in which Elevate 
Berkshire has striven to knit the skills and employment system together across 
Berkshire.  

 

 

 

 

20



 

 

Appendix A - ElevateMe Analytics Review  

January – July 2018 

ElevateMe Reading 

The total page views for the period January 1st 2018 to July 31st 2018 was 6,812. 

There were 1,220 users in January, 953 in February, 781 in March, 700 in April, 773 in May, 1,342 in 

June and 1,043 in July. 

The most accessed My City pages were around work experience and lists of external agencies. 

Most sessions were accessed by those searching organically, but of those site entries referred from 

other sources, the highest proportion were referred from the Reading Borough Council website. 70 

users were referred from social media websites, with 69 coming via Facebook and 1 via Instagram. 

35.21% of all views in the period provided data to compile age statistics and 37.72% of all views 

provided data to compile gender statistics. 

 

Of this percentage; 

 18.69% of all recorded traffic was from users in the project’s scope. This bolsters the 

idea that parents, advisers and teachers are more likely to show the site as a 

resource, rather than be a site that is used independently. 

 As covered in the last report, males are more likely to use ad-blocking software than 

females, so the true figure will be higher (by how much is impossible to tell). This 

also applies to the female numbers. 

 The largest percentage of recorded traffic came from 25-34 year olds, at 28.96%. 

This is a common trend across all ElevateMe sites, and may explain part of the 

gender disparity in site access. For ElevateMe Reading, the difference in usage can 

be clearly seen in the target age group. 

 Something to note as a limitation of these figures, is that Google Analytics does not 

collect data from users under 18, so two years of Elevate-eligible site users are not 

accounted for in any of the statistics. 

 

ElevateMe Bracknell 

The total pageviews for the period was 2,172. 

There were 139 users in January, 106 in February, 104 in March, 91 in April, 104 in May, 157 in June 

and 63 in July. 

The most accessed My City pages were around volunteering, work search and ESOL. 

The site was accessed most by those searching organically, with the most referrals from other 

sources coming from getreading and various Bracknell Forest council agencies.  

21



 

 

A combination of age and gender data could be derived from 35.90% of views (452 of 1,259) – some 

may only have provided one of the above, and will not have been counted in this percentage.  Of the 

included percentage, the 18-24 age range made up 11.35% of recorded traffic. 

ElevateMe Wokingham 

The total pageviews for the period was 7,996. 

In January there were 197 users, 142 in February, 145 in March, 115 in April, 240 in May, 242 in June 

and 203 in July. 

The most accessed city page was a local vacancy search. 

The site was accessed most by those searching organically, with the most referrals from other 

sources coming directly from the Elevate Berkshire landing page.  

A combination of age and gender data could be derived from 33.2% of users – some may only have 

provided one of the above, and will not have been counted in this percentage.  Of the included 

percentage, 13.27% of recorded users were in the 18-24 age group for the project. 

This also bolsters the idea that parents, advisers and teachers are more likely to show the site as a 

resource, rather than be a site that is used independently. Indeed, advisers and volunteers produce 

vacancy lists from the site’s vacancy search function to send to participants. 

As covered in the last report, males are more likely to use ad-blocking software than females, so the 

true figure will be higher (by how much is impossible to tell). This also applies to the female 

numbers. 

ElevateMe RBWM 

The total pageviews for the period was 2,218. 

There were 95 users in January, 90 in February, 101 in March, 76 in April, 84 in May, 169 in June, and 

156 in July. 

The most accessed city page gives information on work experience. 

Most sessions came from organic searches, with most referrals coming from the landing page, Ways 

Into Work and RBWM’s service directory. 

A combination of age and gender data could be derived from 29.30% of users – some may only have 

provided one of the above, and will not have been counted in this percentage.  Of the included 

percentage, 18.18% were in the 18-24 age range. 

ElevateMe West Berkshire 

The total pageviews for the period were 1,900. 

By month, these comprised of 67 users in January, 76 in February, 70 in March, 48 in April, 38 in 

May, 137 in June and 82 in July. 

22



 

 

Most traffic came from organic searches. Most referrals came from the landing page and West Berks 

services portal (though I can’t locate the link myself), though this link may benefit from greater 

prominence on the services portal. 

14.01% of 30.91% of the users that provided age and gender information fell in the 18-24 age 

bracket. 

ElevateMe Slough 

The total pageviews for the period was 2,341. 

There were 59 users in January, 66 views in February, 80 views in March, 63 in April, 83 in May, 207 

in June, and 140 July.  

The most accessed city page was around work experience. The most accessed ‘resources’ were the 

agency list, in particular the Young People’s Service. 

Most sessions came from organic searches, with most referrals coming from the Slough.gov and 

Adviza websites. A significant number of users visited the page directly. 

A combination of age and gender data could be derived from 33.53% of users – some may only have 

provided one of the above, and will not have been counted in this percentage.  Of the included 

percentage, 18.87% of users fell into the 18-24 age bracket. 

General Notes 

As with previous reports, there are significantly more female users than male users. This has 

previously been attributed in large part to prevalent use of ad-blocking software among males aged 

18-24. All partners experienced an increase in traffic in June compared with their previous figures, 

which may have been connected to post-exam uncertainty. 

Review: December 2018 

 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE 
Appendix B – Employment is Everyone’s Business Report 
 

 
Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE 

 
 

Employment is Everyone’s Business (EEB2) 

Update as at 10th September 2018 for Elevate Berkshire Joint Committee 

 

Introduction 

 

1. ‘Employment is Everyone’s Business - Stage 2’ commenced delivery in March 

2017 and is due to be completed in July 2019.  The aim of the project is to 

support Elevate Berkshire and the 6 LA areas to Improve life chances and 

employment outcomes for young people with Special Educational Needs 

SEND.  The project includes 20 days of targeted support of which 5 have 

been utilised. 

 

Current Situation 

 

2. BASE continue to struggle with continued connections with the 6 LAs given 

the holiday period, the turnover of staff and also the high demands on staff, 

which in turn impacts on people being able to attend sessions around 

Employment is Everyone’s Business.   

 

3. BASE have held another two support days since the last report (May 2018), 

one with BCA on preparing for supported internships and study programmes, 

the other one with RBWM on effective commissioning around employment. 

 

Next Steps for EEB Stage 2 Delivery 

 

 

4. BASE has a National Executive Committee meeting in September where 

EEB2 is on the agenda, from this we will be maximising the resources to 

ensure the project is delivered within timescales.  

 

5. The following sessions are being arranged:  

 Another 2 days support for RBWM on effective commissioning around 

employment  

 1 support day with BFC on costed case studies looking at Invest to 

Save. 

 Identify and target a mainstream school that are struggling with 

employment outcomes for young people with SEND (possibly 3 support 

days) 

25



Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE 

 

BASE is registered as a company in England. Reg. company no. 05794990   Reg. charity no. 1136395 
Registered address: Unit 4, 200 Bury Road, Tottington, Bury, Lancashire BL8 3DX 
Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE 

2 

 Identify and target a SEN school that are struggling with employment 

outcomes for young people with SEND (possibly 3 support days) 

 

6. All of these support days findings and experiences will feed into 2 shared 

learning events which will happen during the 2018/2019 academic year. 

 

7. The above list is not exhaustive and there are still days within the project that 

have not been allocated across Berkshire but will be utilised within the 

duration of the Project. 

 

8. Remaining days to be flexible to meet the needs of the 6 local authority areas 

 

Recommendations 

 

9. Elevate Berkshire Joint Committee to note the findings of the report, promote 

the project and be actively involved in relevant sessions. 

 

10. Elevate Berkshire Joint Committee to provide relevant contacts and their 

understanding of where support can best be targeted within the 6 LA areas. 

 

11. Elevate Berkshire Joint Committee to indicate if they would like a session on 

what works and how they can support the project. 

 

12. BASE continue delivering the project and be flexible to meet the needs of 

Berkshire areas, with an aim that project is completed by July 2019. 

 

13. BASE to send next report to JC Members by May 2019. 

 

 

Contact 

For further information please contact Nerise Oldfield-Thompson    

Email: nerise@oldfieldsconsultancyltd.co.uk  

Tel: 07501 095980 

26



Classification: OFFICIAL 
Appendix C – Case Studies 
 

 
Classification: OFFICIAL 

Elevate Slough (Kennedy Scott) Case studies 

Courtney 

Courtney came to Kennedy Scott feeling unsure about her future and low in self-confidence.  The 

staff member quickly established a trusting relationship and Courtney started to see her own 

potential. 

Over the weeks, Courtney engaged in group activities and one to ones.  She started to help others in 

the group as she understood the position they were in from her own experiences, she helped them 

with their CVs and assisted the administrator.  She then felt confident enough to start volunteering 

and attended the Maidenhead job fair and handed out leaflets.   

Courtney has already been successful in applying for a paid role but she felt empowered enough to 

make the decision that this role was not for her as she would like to work in employment support 

since she has enjoyed working with Kennedy Scott so much. 

Courtney said “Since being here at Elevate I have felt so confident in everything, especially with what 

I would like to do as a career.  Elevate helps you in so many different areas, and they don’t throw 

you into work straight away, they ensure you are ready to seek employment”. 

Young Person 2 

YP 2 had social anxieties associated with his Autism and felt marginalised in the community.  At the 

Slough centre he agreed to an action plan with clear steps to help him back into work.  He engaged 

in group activities at the centre and shared his knowledge of computers to help other members of 

the group. This allowed great leaps in his confidence and he applied and secured a role as a Data 

Entry Clerk.  He has in work support which will ensure he can be assisted in the workplace to 

succeed in his role. YP 2 hopes to extend his IT skills in the role so he can do even better in his job.  

27



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: OFFICIAL 
Appendix D – Performance table 
 

 
Classification: OFFICIAL 

 

  

29



Classification: OFFICIAL 
Appendix D – Performance table 
 

 
Classification: OFFICIAL 

 

 

  

30



Classification: OFFICIAL 
Appendix D – Performance table 
 

 
Classification: OFFICIAL 

 

  

31



Classification: OFFICIAL 
Appendix D – Performance table 
 

 
Classification: OFFICIAL 

  

32



Classification: OFFICIAL 
Appendix D – Performance table 
 

 
Classification: OFFICIAL 

 

33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Classification: OFFICIAL 
Appendix E- Budget Table 
 
 

 
Classification: OFFICIAL 

 

35



Classification: OFFICIAL 
Appendix E- Budget Table 
 
 

 
Classification: OFFICIAL 

 

 

36


	Agenda
	6 Minutes and Matters Arising from the Last Meeting
	7 Elevate Berkshire ESF Project Update
	appendix A ElevateMe Analytics August
	Appendix B EEB phase 2 update 10th Sept 2018
	appendix C Case studies
	appendix D - performance table
	appendix E budget table


